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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-Q
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES

1. For the quarterly penod ended March 31, 2025
2 SEC Identification Number 148022 3. BIR Tax 000-288-655V
4.  Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter EURO-MED LABORATORIES PHIL., INC.

5. Philippines 6 J(SECUscOnly)

(Province, country or other jurisdiction of Industry Classification Code:
incorporation or organization)

7._1000 United Nations Avenue cor. San Marcelino St.. Manila 1000
Address of principal office postal code
8. (632) 524-0091 to 98

Issuer’s telephone number, including area code

9. Not Applicable
Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report

10. Securities registersd pursuant 1o Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA

{umber of Shares of Common Stock Outstandin
Title of Each Class and Amount of Debt Outstanding

Common Stock 4,112,140,540 shares



11, Are any or all of these securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes[ x ] No[ |
If yes. state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed therein.

Philippine Stock Exchange Common Stock

12, Check whether the issuer:

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17 thercunder, or
Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a) -1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of The
Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to file such reports);

Yes(x ] No[ ]

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.

Yes[x ] No[ ]



EURO-MED LABORATORIES PHIL., INC.
TABLE OF CONTENTS
SEC FORM 17-Q

Page
Part| FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ltem 1. Financial Statements 8-64
ltem 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations 1-7

SIGNATURES 7



Item 1.

Item 2.

Part I — Financial Information
Financial Statements
See accompanying Interim Financial Statements.

Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

A.) Strategies to mitigate the effects of Covid-19 Pandemic

The company focused on building upon the recovery efforts from the effects of the
Covid-19 pandemic in 2020 to 2022. In 2022, the Company worked hard to meet the
challenges to mitigate the effects of the pandemic. The company had a modest
improvement in the year 2022 and a strong increase in 2023. The Company projected
to have a robust increase in 2024 and the years thereafter.

The company’s strategies are:

a.) Restructuring of the territorial arca of Marketing Division and intensify customer
visits, thereby resulting in a better coverage and higher sales.

b.) The company has created the Business Development Unit under the Senior
Executive, with the primary objective of developing new product contracts,
distribution of multinational products and generation of new revenue streams.

¢.) The company has also created the Customer Care Unit under the Treasury
Department. This unit will endeavor to address all concerns, i.e. marketing,
delivery, payments, credit terms, collections, ctc. This holistic approach would
further strengthen the customer relationship in due course.

d.) On the logistic area, the Company introduced an employce work schedule with
rotational assignments. Since warchousing and distribution functions are on a 24
hour operations basis, this scheme would make the preparation and delivery of
products to customers more efficient and on time. Likewise, the Logistics
Department’s plantilla includes reliever /roving pharmacists to have a ready
remedy in cases of emergency leaves, immediate resignations, death, etc.

e.) On the production area the strategy is to maximize the utilization of existing
capacity. This is done by continuously do advanced planning and increasing
flexibility through multi-line sct-up.

f.) The resumption of the face to face annual sales conference to discuss strategies to
strengthen the coordination between marketing and distribution and its
procedures on faster resolution of customer issues and concerns to further
improve customer relationship.

B.)There are no known events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation

that is material to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an
obligation. There are no off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations
and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entitics or other persons
created during the reporting period.

B.)In view of the current global financial condition, the company hereby assesses its financial
risk exposures on its financial instruments as of datc of these [inancial statements.

The company, being primarily cngaged in a manufacturing business, have few linancial
instruments, such as accounts receivable, accounts payable and notes payable, as distinguished
from a financial institution whose assets and liabilities are mostly financial instruments. The
company has no complex securities particularly on derivatives.



The financial risk exposures of the company are as follows:
1. Currency or Foreign Exchange risk.

This risk arises on the financial instruments that are denominated in foreign currency other
than the functional currency (the Philippine peso) in which they are measured. Such exposure
arises from the sales of goods to export markets, importation of raw materials from forcign
countries and from differences in exchange rates between assets, liabilitics and equities, which
are denominated in foreign currencics.

The Peso/Dollar exchange rate appreciated from about # 58.37/USS | in January 2025 to
about B 57.38/US$ 1 in March 2025. The company’s export sales for the periods ended
January to March 2025 and 2024 are 1.4% and 3.7% respectively of total sales, which are
denominated in foreign currency.

The raw materials being imported are initial inputs for producing parenteral solutions and
LDPE bottles. A Peso/Dollar exchange rate depreciation will result in an increase in the
company’s production cost. The company manages this risk by maintaining at least two (2) or
more suppliers of its material requirements, so that it would not be dependent in only one (1)
supplier and to provide room for negotiating prices for three (3) months, six (6) months or one
(1) year contracts.

The company’s overall risk management program focus on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial
performance by obtaining loans that are peso denominated only and maintaining US$
accounts whose export proceeds are maintained from which payments for imports are made.

2. Interest rate risk.

This risk arises on interest-bearing financial instruments recognized in the statement of
financial position, such as notes payable and acceptances payable. The company’s exposure
relates primarily to the company’s shori-term and long-tcrm debt obligations with banks.

The company’s loans as of March 31, 2025 that is exposed 1o interest rate risks are as follows:

Maturing within one (1) year

Notes payable P 2,629.161,290

Acceptances payable 544,979,122 3.174,140.412
Maturing over one (1)year

Notes payable 771,242,762 771,242,762
Total 3.945.383.174

The company manages its exposure in interest rate risk by closcly monitoring these loans with
various banks and maximizing borrowing period based on market volatility of interest rates.

3. Credit risk.
This risk arises when one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the other

party by failing to discharge an obligation. The company’s exposure 1o this risk relates 1o its
deposits with banks and trade and non-trade receivables.

The maximum credit exposurc of the company as of March 31, 2025
{ollows:



Cash in banks P 910,230,258

Trade receivables-net 1,898,522,838
Non-trade receivables 173,198,811

2,981,951.907

To manage credit risk, the company maintains its bank deposits with reputable banks and
trades only with recognized and credit-worthy customers. It is the Company’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subjected 1o credit verification process with
emphasis on their capacity, character and willingness to pay. Each customer, whether
corporate or otherwise, has an approved credit limit. These limits are reviewed regularly by
the Treasury Department, and customer balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the
result that the company’s exposure 10 bad debts is not significant. Euro-Med’s customers are
hospitals, clinics. drugstores. medical distributors and traders as well as corporate/industrial
accounts. Thc company’s customer base is composed of more than 8000 institutions
nationwide. Hence, the company is not dependent on one or a few major customers and no
customer accounts for more than ten percent (10%) of the company’s sales and receivables.

4. Market risk.

This risk arises from fluctuations in the markel prices of the company’s products. The
company is exposed to price risk because of the nature of its business. [Furo-Med is the
leading manufacturer of intravenous fluids in the Philippines and competes with other IVF
manufacturers and importers. The risk is managed by maintaining good business relations
with customers, producing a wide-range of products and providing prompt, courteous and
cfficient marketing and delivery service. Likewise, for valucd customers, prices are
contracted for a long-term period.

The company does not anticipate that the price of its high quality intravenous fluid products
will decline significantly in the foreseeable futurc and therefore, has not entered into
derivative or other contracts to manage the risk of a decline in market prices. The Company
revicws its outlook for market prices regularly in considering the need for active financial risk
management.

5. Liquidity risk.

This risk arises when the company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities. The Company’s exposure relates to the Company’s debt obligations
to banks, to suppliers of raw materials and services and to government regulating and taxing
authorities.

The Company's financial liabilities as of March 31, 2025 that are exposed to liquidity risk are
as follows:

Bank Loans:
Maturing within one (1) ycar P 2.387,429.476
Maturing over one (1) year 241.731.814
Trade accounts payablc 498.340.099
Acceptances payable 544,979,122
Income tax payable 48.054.086

P 3.720,534,597

The company manages this risk (2) by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents with
banks to fund the payments of currently maturing liabilitics, (b) by securing credit lines from
various reputable banks and (c¢) by maintaining good credit standing with banks and trade



suppliers. The Company has Omnibus Credit Lines in the aggregate amount of about P 4.2
Billion on a clean basis from various commercial banks which provided for cash borrowings
(Peso or Dollar), ExportDomestic Bills Purchase Lines, Bankers Acceptances and Letters of
Credit (with no marginal deposit at opening). Thesc credit lines are obtained and regularly
renewed. Liquidity requirements and positions are monitored daily and monthly reports are
reviewed by the management

Furo-Med’s financial instrument profile as of March 31, 2025 follows:

¢.1) Classification, deseription and measurements applicd for each:

1.1)

1.4)

Classification

A financial asset or financial
liability at fair valuc through

profit or loss (FVPL)

Held to maturity Investments

(HTM)

Loans and Receivables

Available-for-sale
Financial assets (AFS)

Description

Marketable
securities

None

3.1) Tradc and other
receivables

3.2) Bank loans
(Notes payable &
Acceptances
payablc)

3.3) ‘Irade accounts
payable

4.2)Proprietary
Shares in  Casino
Espafol de Manila

Measurement

a.) At initial recognition at
fair value

b)Subsequent Valuation -
measured at fair value

Not Applicable

a) At initial rccognition -
measured at fair value

b) Subsequent Valuation —
at amortized cost, less

impairment loss if any.
a) Al initial
recognition -

measured at fair
value

b)Subsequent valuation — at
cost

The investment in the proprietary sharcs in Casino Espaiol de Manila is only minimal at
R 200,000 and is obtained for entertaining Company Clients in its restaurant.

The Company has no complex securities particularly on derivatives.

¢.2) The risks that are incorporated in the valuation ol financial assets or liabilitics are:



2.1 On Trade receivables -

In subsequent valuation of this account, the credit risk is considered by providing for an
estimate of probable losses on doubt{ul accounts when collection of the full amount is no
longer probable. The Company has provided an Allowance for doubtlul accounts that

reduces the carrying value of this assel.

22) Bank loans (Notes payable and Acceptances payablc)

Since this liability is recognized initially at an amount equal to the principal
payable at maturity and somc arc short-term, the interest rate risk has no

significant effect on the carrying amount of this liability.

23) Trade accounts payable

Duc to the short-term nature of this liability and is non-interest bearing, the

interest rate risk has no cffect on its carrying amount.

¢.3) Comparison of fair values (in 000)

As of March 31, 2025

As of December 31, 2024

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
A. Financial assets P P
Cash 910,230 910230 857.622 857,622
Financial Asscts at FVPL. 233,557 233,557 233,557 233,557
Trade & other receivables-net 2071.721 2,071,721 2,103,323 2,103,323
Available for sale securities
Unquoted 200 200 200 200
TOTAL 3,215,708 3.215.708 3,194,702 3.194702
B. Financial liabilities
Trade accounts payable 498,340 498,340 489,603 489,603
Notes payable - current 2.387.429 2,387,429 2,827.334 2827334
Notes payable - non-current 241,732 241,732 774251 774,251
Acceptances payable 344 979 544 979 285.651 285,651
TOTAL P 3,672,480 3672480 P 4376839 4 376,839

1).) The Company’s top five (5) key performance indicators are:

1.) The Company’s net sales increased by 39.4% from P 1,168.8 million for the first quarter of 2024
to P1,629.9 million for the first quartcr of 2025. The increase in sales was attributed to the

increase in local sales which increased by42.9% from P 1,125.1 million for the first quarter of

2024 to P1,607.4 million for the first quarter of 2025. Export sales decreased by48.4% from
P43.6 million for the first quarter of 2024 to P 22.5 million for the first quarter of 2025. The

increase (decrease) in sales indicator was chosen by management as it discloses the level of

performance thc Company has attained against the forccast. The percentage change is computed
by dividing the peso increase (decrease) in sales by the peso sales during the comparable period

of previous year.

2.) Gross profit from sales increased by % from P 425.3 million for the first quarter of 2024 to P556.4
million for the first quarter of 2025. Cost of goods manufactured and sold increased by 44.4% from P

743.5 million for the first quarter of 2024 to P1,073.5 million for the first quarter of 2025. As a

percentage of net sales, cost of goods manufactured and sold increascd from 63.6% for the first quarter
of 2024 to 65.9% for the first quarter of 2025. The gross profit indicator provides information about
product selling prices relative to production costs. The percentage change in gross profit is computed
by dividing the peso increase (decrease) in gross profit by the peso gross profit during the comparable

period of previous year.



3.) Operating cxpenses (administrative, selling and distribution expenses) increased by 30% from P
206.2 million for the first quarter of 2024 to B 385.1 million for the first quarter of 2025. The increase
was due to the increased of operating cxpenses i.e.  delivery expenscs. marketing  development
cxpense and other expenses. As a pereentage of net sales, operating expenses decreased from 25.3%
for the first quarter of 2024 to 23.6% for the first quarter of 2025. Income from operations increased
by 32.7% from P 129.1 million for the first quarter of 2024 to P171.3 million for the first quarter of
2025. Changes in income from operations and operating cxpenses are management’s indicators for the
degree of control over the Company’s spending on administrative, selling, distribution and other
expenses. The percentage change in operating expenses is calculated by dividing the peso increase
(decrease) in operating expenses by the peso operating expenses during the comparable period of
previous year.

4.) Net Finance and misccllancous income/cost increased by 16.2% from P 70.8 million for the first
quarter of 2024 to P 82.4 million for the first quarter of 2025. Changes in Net finance and
miscellancous income/cost indicator provides information on significant elements of income and other
expenditures that did not arise from the Company’s continuing opcrations. The percentage change is
calculated by dividing the peso increase (decrease) in Net finance and miscellaneous income/cost by
the net finance and miscellaneous income/cost during the comparable period of previous year.

5.) Provision for income tax increased by 56.7% from P 14.6 million for the first quarter of 2024 to P
22.9 million for the first quarter of 2025. Net income increased by 51.3% from P 43.6 million for the
first quarter of 2024 to P 66.0 million for the first quarter of 2025. Changes in net income arc
indicators of the adequacy of amount to satisfy stockholders’ dividend and rate-of- return expectations.
The percentage change in net income is calculated by dividing the peso increase/decreasc in net income
by the peso net income during the comparable period of previous year.

The company’s total assets decreased by 0.6% from I 10.949.9 million in 2024 to P 10,885.1 million in
2025. Current ratio is increased by 2.5% from 1.36:1 in 2024 to 1.39:1 in 2025 whilc Equity ratio
increased from 1.54:1 in 2024 to 1.55:1 in 2025.

The increase in cash and cash equivalent was due to stratcgic approach in collecting the reccivables.
The decrease in other current assets was duc Lo the reclassification of advances to suppliers. The
increase in trust receipts payable was due o orders of raw materials for building stocks in 1% to 2" gtrs.
in preparation for the incrcase in sales in the second half of 2025. The decrease in loans payable
current was duc to payments made for amortization of loans. The amount of income tax payable
increased since the amount as of 31 Dec. 2024 represents the audited final and adjusted income tax
payable as of the end of year 2024, while the amount as of 31 March 2025 includes the balance as of 31
December 2024 and the unaudited cstimated tax on income for the first quarter of 2025. The amount of
income tax payable as of 31 December 2024 was paid on April 15, 2025.  The increase in Retained
Earnings was due to the net income for the first quarter of 2025.

Projection and Effects of Covid-19 Pandemic

The Company [elt the effect of Covid-19 pandemic starting March, 2020 and still raging in year
2021. The new variant, Omicron set in late 2021 and cases up at start of March 2022. Hardest hit
is its subsidiary CaféFrance, however, the company sces a glim of hope in 2022 as the government
and the private scctor are closely coordinating to have a mass vaccination in the country, thereby
opening up the economy towards the end of 2022. Starting 2023, the company have recovered and
is working hard to continue its growth.

The Company has implemented in 2021 a reorganization of our nationwide sales lield personnel to
reduce their areas of coverage which would result to better coverage and higher sales.

‘The consolidated sales forecast for 2025 would be an increase in sales of about 10%, totaling to

about P6.4 billion. The expected net income for 2025 is about P 378.0 million which is about 6%
of sales.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Codc, the issuer has duly caused this report 10
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

EURO-MED LABORATORIES PHILS., INC.

By:
Gieorgiana S. E,vidcnlc S&%ﬁ N. Pineda
Prcsidc@-’ (Lhie Accountant

May 14, 2025 May 14, 2025



EURO-MED LABORATORIES PHIL., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
March 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Unaudited Audited
2025 2024
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Nofe 5) P 930,230,258 P 857,622,959
Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss (Note 6) 233,556,613 233,556,613
Trade and other receivables - net (Note 7) 2,071,721,649 2,103,323,573
Inventories (Nofe 8) 1,712,899,012 1,741,724,233
Other current assets (Noke 9) 354,4%M,727 381,831,302
Total Current Assels 5,302,902,259 5,318,058,680
NON-CURRENT ASSEIS
Property, plant and equipment - net (Note 10) 4,734,213,544 4,758,300,517
Intangible assets (Note 11) 270,963,665 268,132,852
Right-of-use asscts - net (Nole 30) 168,689,945 174,891,495
Deferred tax assets - net (Nofe 31) 121,991,536 122,264,262
Other non-current assels (Note 12) 306,351,299 308,256,933
Total Non-current Asscts 5,602,209,990 5,631,846,059
TOTAL ASSETS P 10905112249 P 10,949,904,739
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables (Nofe 13) 518,340,099 489,603,117
Trust receipts payable (Nole 16) 544,979,122 498,734,364
Notes payable (Note 14) 2,387,429,476 2,541,683,889
Current poriton of loans payable (Nofe 15) 241,731,814 285,650,564
Current portion of lease liabilities (Note 30) 66,815,432 66,983,492
Income tax payable 48,054,086 26,603,355
Total Current Liabilities 3,807,350,028 3,909,260,781
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Loans payable, net of current portion (Note 15) 771,242,762 774,251,237
Lease liabilities, net of current portion (Neke 30) 119,633,720 125,533,590
Retirement benefit obligation (Nole 29) 257,959,193 257,959,193
Total Noncurrent Liabilitics 1,148,835,675 1,157,744,020
Total Liabilitics 4,956,185,703 5,067,004,801
FQUITY
Share capital (Note 17) 4,112,140,540 4,112,140,510
Additional paid-in capital (Note 17) 66,609,227 66,609,227
Other component of equity (Nofes 29 and 33) ( 19,767,297 ) ( 19,767,297 )
Retained earnings (Note 17) 1,789,944,075 1,723,917,468
Total Equity 5,948,926,545 5,882,899,938
TOTAL LTABILITIES AND EQUITY P 10905112249 P 10,949,904,739

See Noles to Consolidated Financial Stalements



EURO-MED LABORATORIES PHIL., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE QUARTERS ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 AND 2024

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

NET SALES (Note 19)

COST OF GOODS MANUFACTURED
AND SOLD (Note 20)

GROSS PROFIT

SFLLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
(Note 22)

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
(Nole 23)

OTHER INCOME /( EXPENSES ) (NET) (Nole 24, 25)
INCOME BEFORE INCOMF, TAX

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 31)

NET INCOME

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BASIC/DILUTED INCOME PER SHARE (Note 32)

Computed based on Net Income
Computed based on Total Comprehensive Income

2025 2024
1,629,912,712 1,168,810,640
1,073,532,195) 743,482,746 )
556,380,517 425,327,894
295,047,985 ) 197,639,986 )
90,017,466 ) 98,580,278 )
82,373,962 ) 70,857,962 )
88,941,104 58,249,668
22,914,498 ) 14,616,650 )
66,026,607 43,633,018
66,026,607 43,633,018
0.02 0.01
0.02 0.01

See Notes to Consolidaled Financial Statemenls



FURO-MED LABORATORIES PHIT.., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 AND MARCH 31, 2024
(Amounts i Philippine Pesos)

2025 2024
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax P 88,941,104 P 58,249,668
Adjustments for:
Depreciation (Notes 10 and 30) 76,263,815 61,433,383
Interest expense (Nofe 25) 75,008,540 73,317,572
Interest income (Nole 24) ( 383,966 ) ( 341,761)
Unrealized gain on foreign exchange (Nofe 24) ( 88,064 ) 240,555
Operating profit before working capital changes 239,741,429 192,899,417
Decrease (increase) in:
Trade and other receivables 31,601,924 107,793,896
Inventories 28,825,221 50,814,955
Other current asscts 27,336,575 27,389,868
Other non-current assets 1,905,634 (7.046,148)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables 8,736,982 (81,103,599)
Net cash generated from operations 338,147,765 290,748,389
Interest received (Note 24) 383,966 341,761
Income tax paid ( 48,054,086) ( 51,641,174)
Interest paid ( 75,008,540 ) ( 73,317,572)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 215,469,105 166,131,404
CASH FLOWS INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment (Note 10) ( 52,176,843 ) ( 28,617,366 )
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities ( 52,176,843 ) ( 28,617,366 )
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTTVITIES
Proceeds from availment of notes payable (Nofes 14 and 34) 892,700,000 637,275,000
Net proceeds (repayments)
of trust receipls payable (Notes 16 amd 34) 46,244,758 71,735,935
Repayments of lease liabilities (Nole 30) ( 6,067,930) ( 2,915,554)
Dividends paid (Nete 17) 5
Repayments of loans (Notes 15 and 34) ( 1,046,954,413) ( 660,163,138 )
Availment/ (payments) of notes payable (Noles 14 and 34) 46,927,225 ( 44,237,500 )
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities ( 110,684,963 ) 1,694,763
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS r 52,607,299 P 49,815,006
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR CONSIST OF:
Cash on hand P 9441213 P 7.921,172
Cash in banks 900,789,045 873,428,290

P 910,230,258 P 881,349,462

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Stalements.
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EURO-MED LABORATORIES PHIL., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF CITANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE QUARTERS ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 and MARCIT 2024

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

CAPITAL STOCK (Note 17)
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL (Not: 17)

OTHER COMPONENT OF EQUITY (Note 29 and 33)
Balance at beginning of year
Actuarial gain - net tax

Balance at end of year

RETAINED EARNINGS (Note 17)

Balance at beginning of year
Prior period adjustment
Net profit for the year

Balance at end of year

TOTAL EQUITY

See Notes Lo Consolidated Financial Statemnents

11

2025 2024
4112140580 P 4,112,140,540
66,609,227 66,609,227
19,767,297 ( 25,150,977
19,767,297 ( 25,150,977 )
1,723,917,468 1,692,489,188
66,026,607 43,633,028
1,789,944,075 1,736,122,216
5948926545 P 5889,721,007




EURO-MED LABORATORIES PHIL., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2025 AND 2024
(Amounts in Philippine Peso)

GENERAL INFORMATION
Corporate Information

Euro-Med Laboratories Phil,, Inc. (the “Parent Company”) was registered with the
Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on January 29, 1988. Its primary
purpose is to engage in the manufacture of pharmaceutical products such as large and small-
volume parenteral and other solutions, inhalation, irrigation, and dialysis.

On July 13, 2016, the Parent Company's Articles of Incorporation was amended to add the
provision of training or seminar for detailmen, medical representatives, and professional
sales representatives and to do all other acts and things in connection with the business as
one of theParent Company's primary purposes.

The registered address of the Parent Company is at PPL Building, United Nations Avenue
corner San Marcelino Street, Manila.

The Parent Company's ultimate parent company is US. Automotive Co, Inc.
(U.S. Automotive), which was also incorporated in the Philippines.

The Parent Company's shares of stocks are publicly traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange
(PSE).

Subsidiaries of the Parent Company
The Parent Company and all subsidiaries (collectively referred to as "the Group") were

incorporated in the Philippines. The followings are the subsidiaries and the respective
principal activities as at March 31, 2025 and 2024:

Principal Activities
Hemotek Renal Center, Inc. (Hemotek) Provide renal and other healthcare services
CafeFrance Corp. (CafeFrance) Development and operation of Quick Service
Restaurant (QSR)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The Group's consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) Accounting Standards. PFRS Accounting
Standards includes statements named PFRS and Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS),
and Philippine Interpretations based on equivalent interpretations of the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) issued by the Philippine Financial
and Sustainability Reporting Standards Council (FSRSC).



The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL) which have been
measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine
Peso, the functional currency of the Group, and all values are rounded to the nearest peso,
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for each of the
three (3) years in the period ended December 31, 2024, represent the consolidation of the
financial statements of Euro-Med and the following subsidiaries owned by the Parent

Company:

Effective Percentage of Ownership

2025 2024
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
Hemotek 100 = 100 -
CaféFrance 100 - 100 -

All subsidiaries were incorporated in the Philippines and the functional currency is the
Philippine peso.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries as at March 31, 2025 and 2024. Control is achieved when the
Parent Company is exposed or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Parent Company controls an investee if, and only if, the Parent Company
has:

»  Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current liability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee);

+  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

»  The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its return

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To
support this presumption and when the Parent Company has less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Parent Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

«  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

+  Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

«  The Parent Company's voting rights and potential voting rights

The Parent Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one (1) or more of the three (3) elements of
control. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which
the Parent Company obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when
such control ceases. Assets, liabilities, income, and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date the Parent Company gains control until the date the Parent Company ceases to control
the subsidiary.

-
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Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. Adjustments, where necessary, are
made to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. Intercompany
transactions, balances, and unrealized gains or losses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated.

Non-controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and the net assets in
subsidiaries not held by the Parent Company and are presented separately in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated
statements of financial position, separately from equity attributable to equity holders of the
Group.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those in previous financial years, except
for the adoption of the following amendments to existing standards effective beginning
January 1, 2024. Except as otherwise indicated, the new standards and amendments have no
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

¢ Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The amendments provide guidance on whether a liability should be classified as either
current or non-current. The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current should be based on rights that are in existence at the end of the
reporting period and that the classification is unaffected by expectations about whether
an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability. The application of these
amendments has no significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

¢ Amendments to PAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

The amendments specify that if the right to defer settlement for at least 12 months is
subject to an entity complying with conditions after reporting period, then those
conditions would not affect whether the right to defer settlement exists at the end of the
reporting period for the purposes of classifying a liability as current or non-current. For
the non-current liabilities subject to conditions, an entity is required to disclose
information about the conditions, whether the entity would comply with the conditions
based on its circumstances at the reporting date and whether and how the entity expects
to comply with the conditions by the date on which they are contractually required to be
tested. The application of these amendments has no impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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¢ Amendments to PAS 7 and PFRS 7, Disclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangements

The amendments add a disclosure objective to PAS 7 stating that an entity is required to
disclose information about its supplier finance arrangements that enables users of
financial statements to assess the effects of those arrangements on the entity’s liabilities
and cash flows. In addition, PFRS 7 is amended to add supplier finance arrangements as
an example within the requirements to disclose information about an entity’s exposure to
concentration of liquidity risk. The application of these amendments has no significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Effective in 2024 that is not Relevant to the Group
Among the amendments to PFRS Accounting Standards, which are mandatorily effective for

annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024, the amendments to PAS 12, International
Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rulesand PFRS 16, Leases - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback,
are not relevant to the Group's financial statements.

Issued but not yet Effective
Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. The Group intends to adopt the
following pronouncements when they become effective. Adoption of these pronouncements is
not expected to have a significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Effective subsequent to 2024 but not Adopted Early

e Amendments to PAS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - Lack of
Exchangeability(effective from January 1, 2025)

e PFRS 9 and PFRS 7 (Amendments), Financial Instruments, and Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments
(effective from January 1, 2026)

e PFRS 18, Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements (effective from January 1, 2027)

The Group continues to assess the impact of the above new and amended accounting
standards and interpretations effective subsequent to December 31, 2024. Additional
disclosures required by these new and amended accounting standards and interpretations
will be included in the financial statements when they are adopted.

Material Accounting Policies

Financial Assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

(a) those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit or

loss)

(b) those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.



For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held. For investment in equity instruments that
arc not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Group shall reclassify financial assets when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

The Group’s financial assets at amortized cost includes cash, trade and other receivables
(except advances to suppliers and contractors), bidders and performance bonds and other
non-current assets (excluding prepayments, deferred input VAT, advances to suppliers and
contractors and investment in club shares).

The Group’s financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss includes
investments in portfolio held for trading purposes, while financial assets held at fair value
through other comprehensive income includes investment in club shares.

Recognition and Derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognized
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss.

(a) Debt instruments - subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model
for managing asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

= Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in “Other
expenses (net)” in the statement of comprehensive income, using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized directly to profit
or loss and presented in “Other expenses (net)” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented in administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.



The Group’s financial assets at amortized cost consists of cash, trade and other
receivables (except advances to suppliers and contractors), bidders and performance
bonds and other non-current assets (excluding prepayments, deferred input VAT,
advances to suppliers and contractors and investment in club shares).

* FVOCIL Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in
“Other expenses (net)” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in “Other expenses (net)” in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, using effective interestrate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in “Other expenses (net)”
and impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

The Group does not have debt instruments that are classified as financial assets at
FVOCL

* FVIPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVIPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVIPL is recognized in profit or loss and presented in “Other expenses
(net)” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group’s financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss consists
of investments portfolio held for trading purposes.

(b) Equity instruments

Where the Group’s management has clected to present fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the equity investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are recognized in “Other expenses
(net)” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.

The Group's equity financial assets at FVOCI consists of investment in club shares.
Impairment of Financial Assets
The Group recognizes an allowance for ECL for all debt instruments not held at FVTPL. ECL
is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The difference is then

discounted at an approximation to the asset's original effective interest rate.
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Tor trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach and has calculated ECL
based on the lifetime ECL. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to its customers
and the economic environment.

For debt instruments measured at amortized cost and FVOCI, the ECI. is based on the
12-month ECL, which pertains to the portion of lifetime ECLs that result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL. When determining whether the credit risk
of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. The
Group also considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without
undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Financial Liabilities
Classification

The Group's financial liabilitics are classified as (a) financial liabilities at amortized cost and
(b) financial liabilities at FVTPL.

The Group did not hold any financial liabilities at FVTPL during and at the end of each
reporting period.

Financial liabilities at amorlized cost are included in current liabilities, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the reporting date when the Group has an unconditional right
to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date which are classified as
non-current liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities at amortized cost consists of trade and other payables
(excluding statutory payables), trust receipts payable, notes payable, loans payable and lease
liabilities.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

The Group recognizes a financial liability in the statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provision of the instrument.

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequent Measurement
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective

interest method. Interest expense on financial liabilities is recognized within finance cost, at
gross amount, in profit or loss.
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Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognized when it is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in a contract is discharged or cancelled, or when the obligation expires.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
® In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Tevel 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assels or
liabilities.

e Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level of input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level of input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assets or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realized the asset and settle the liability
simultancously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). The cost of raw
materials, goods in process and finished goods are calculated based on standard costing
method. Standard cost is principally determined using the moving average method. The
NRV of raw matlerials, finished goods and merchandise inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and of
marketing and distribution.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted
for as follows:

Raw materials - first-in first-out method

Finished goods - the cost of direct materials and labor and a
the proportion of manufacturing overhead based
on a normal operating capacity but excluding
borrowing cost, a moving average basis

Merchandise - first in first-out

Property, Plant and Equipment
Following initial recognition at cost, land is stated at cost less impairment in value, if any. All
other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation,

amortization, and any impairment in value.

Depreciation and amortization are calculated on a straight-line basis over the following
estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment:

Land improvements 20 years
Building and leaschold improvements 30 years
Machineries and equipment 20 years
Transportation equipment 10 years
Laboratory and office equipment and improvements 10 years

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated
depreciation, amortization and any impairment in value are removed from the accounts.
Any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents properties under construction and is stated at cost. Cost
includes costs of construction and other direct costs. Construction in progress is not
depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are completed and ready for operational
use.
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Intangible Assets
Intangible assets include trademarks and licenses, and patents and rights.

Trademarks and licenses with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortized. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Trademarks and licenses are derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses, arising from derecognition of trademarks and licenses
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the assets, are recognized in profit or loss.

Patents and rights are stated at cost, which includes purchase price and other direct costs,
less accumulated amortization, and any impairment in value. Patents and rights are
amortized on a straight-line basis over twenty (20) years and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

When patents and rights are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related
accumulated amortization and any impairment in value are removed from the accounts. Any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Revenue and Cost Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services
are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Group assesses ils
revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as a principal or as
an agent.

The Group has concluded that it is acting as principal in majority of ils revenue
arrangements. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is
recognized:

Sales of Goods. Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control is
transferred to the customer, which is normally upon delivery. Sales returns and discounts
are deducted from sales to arrive at net sales shown in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

Sale of Service. Sales of services are recognized when services are provided.

Interest Income. Interest income is recognized as interest accrues taking into account the
effective yield on the asset.

Other Income. Income from other sources is recognized when earned during the period.
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Employee Benefits

The Group provides short-term and post-employment benefits to employees through
defined benefit obligations and other employee benefits.

‘The Group’s defined benefit obligation covers all regular full-time employees. It is calculated
annually by independent actuaries using projected unit credit method. The defined benefit
obligation is not funded.

Leases

The Group as a Lessee

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group depreciated the right-of-use asset on a
straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful
life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term which is from two to ten years.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using
the practical expedients. Instead of recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the
payments in relation to these are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line
bases over the lease term.

The Group as a Lessor

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets are classified as operating leases. Rent income from operating leases
is recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset, if any, are capitalized

during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use.

Other borrowing costs are recognized and charged to profit or loss in the period in which
these are incurred.

Current and Deferred Income Tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period where the Group generate taxable

income.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.
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Functional Currency and Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the functional and
presentation currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the
functional currency rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate
of exchange prevailing at the statements of financial position date. All differences are taken
to the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Equity

Capital stock represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.Contribution in
excess of par value is accounted for as an additional paid-in capital.

Other component of equity include the accumulated actuarial gains or (losses) from
remeasurements of post-employment defined benefit plan.

Retained earnings includes all current and prior period results as disclosed in the statements
of comprehensive income, reduced by the amounts of dividends declared, if any.

Related Parties

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly or
indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercises significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationship
also exists between and/or among entities which are under the common control with the
reporting enterprise, or between and/or among entities and its key management personnel,
directors or its shareholders. In considering each possible related party relationship,
attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net income for the year attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of common stocks outstanding during the
year, with retroactive adjustment for any stock dividends or stock splits declared during the
year. :

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of
common stocks outstanding during the year, after giving retroactive effect for any stock
dividends, stock splits or reverse stock splits during the year, and adjusted for the effect of
dilutive options.

Segment Reporting
The Group reports separate information about each operating segment identified.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate
to transactions with any of the Group's other components; from whose operating results are
regularly reviewed to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment; and for
which discrete information is available.



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES ANDASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS
Accounting Standards requires management to exercise judgments and make accounting
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and related notes.The judgments and accounting estimates used in the
consolidated financial statements are based upon management's evaluation of relevant facts
and circumstances as at the reporting date.

While the Group believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant
differences in the actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materially
affect the estimated amounts. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions in
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the significant judgments, accounting estimates, and assumptions made by
the Group:

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the
following. judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effects on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

Determining the Lease Term of Contracts with Renewal and Termination Options - Group
as a Lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the noncancellable term of the lease, together with
any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is recasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an oplion to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The
Group applies judgment in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to
exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors
that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After
the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not fo
exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g. construction of significant leaschold
improvements or significant customization to the leased asset).

The Group did not include the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of buildings
even though the Group typically exercises its option to renew for these leases because the
Group does not have an enforceable right to extend the lease beyond the non-cancellable
period.
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Determining Functional Currency

Judgment is exercised in assessing various factors in determining the functional currency of
each entity within the Group, including prices of goods and services, competition, cost and
expenses and other factors including the currency in which financing is primarily
undertaken by each entity.

Additional factors are considered in determining the functional currency of a foreign
operation, including whether its activities are carried as an extension of that of a Group
rather than being carried out with significant autonomy.

Business Model Assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the
business model test. The Group determines the business model at a level that reflects how
groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective.
This assessment includes judgment reflecting all relevant evidence including how the
performance of the assels is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect
the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the
assets are compensated. Monitoring is part of the Group's continuous assessment of whether
the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be
appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model
and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

Significant Increase of Credit Risk

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the consolidated
statements of financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined
using internal valuation techniques using generally accepted market valuation models. The
input to these models is taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, estimates are used in establishing fair values. These estimates may include
considerations of liquidity, volatility and correlation.

Determining the Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the consolidated
statements of financial position account cannot be derived from active markets, they are
determined using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flows model. The
inputs to this model are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. The judgments include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Estimates and Assumptions
The key estimates and assumptions used in the financial statements are based upon the

Group’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial
statements. Actual results could differ from such estimates.



Assessment for ECL on Trade Receivables

The Group, applying the simplified approach in the computation of ECL, initially uses a
provision matrix based on historical default rates for trade receivables. The provision matrix
specifies provision rates depending on the number of days that a trade receivable is past due.
The Group also uses appropriate groupings if its historical credit loss experience shows
significantly different loss patterns for different customer segments. The Group then adjusts
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information on the basis of current
observable data affecting each customer segment to reflect the effects of current and
forecasted economic conditions.

The Group adjusts historical default rates to forward-looking default rate by determining the
closely related economic factor affecting each customer segment. The Group regularly
reviews the methodology and assumptions used for estimating ECL to reduce any
differences between estimates and actual credit loss experience.

The determination of the relationship between historical default rates and forecasted
economic conditions is a significant accounting estimate. Accordingly, the provision for ECL
on trade receivables is sensitive to changes in assumptions about forecasted economic
conditions.

The carrying amount of trade receivables is P1,898.5 million and P1,807.4 million as at March
31, 2025 and Dec. 2024, respectively (see Note 7).

Assessment for ECL on Other Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

The Groupdetermines the allowance for ECL using general approach based on the
probability- weighted estimate of the present value of all cash shortfalls over the expected
life of financial assets at amortized cost. ECL is provided for credit losses that result from
possible default events within the next 12 months unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition in which case ECL is provided based on lifetime ECI..

When determining if there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort and
that is relevant for the particular financial instrument being assessed such as, but not limited
to, the following factors:

Actual or expected external and internal credit rating downgrade;

. Existing or forecasted adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions;
and

. Actual or expected significant adverse changes in the operating results of the
borrower.

The Group also considers financial assets that are more than 120 days past due to be the
latest point at which lifetime ECL should be recognized unless it can demonstrate that this
does not represent a significant risk in credit risk such as when non-payment was an
administrative oversight rather than resulting from financial difficulty of the borrower.
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The Group has assessed that the ECL on other financial assets at amortized cost is not
material because the transactions with respect to these financial assets were entered into by
the Group only with reputable banks and companies with good credit standing and
relatively low risk of defaults. Accordingly, no provision for ECL on other financial assets at
amortized cost was recognized in March 31, 2025 and 2024. The carrying amounts of other
financial assets at amortized cost are as follows:

2025 2024
Cash in banks P 920,789,045 P 848,366,786
Financial asset at FVIPL 233,556,613 233,556,613
Other receivables:

Advances to officers and employees 59,644,495 63,751,787

Others* 113,554,315 127,122,358
Other current assets:

Bidders and performance bonds 9,253,899 9,369,943
Rental and security deposits 177,992,855 169,175,352
Bidders and performance bonds 13,880,849 14,054,915
Advances to officers and employees 31,915,081 30,272,272

P 1,560,587,152 P 1,495,670,026

*Cxcluding receivable from SSS amounting to P5.3 million and P5.1 million as at March 31, 2025 and 2024,
respeclively.

Determination of NRV of Inventories

The Group writes down the cost of inventories whenever the NRV of inventories becomes
lower than cost due to damage, physical deterioration, obsolescence, change in price levels or
other causes. The Group reviews the lower of cost and NRV of inventories on a periodic
basis. NRV represents the estimated future selling price of the product based on prevailing
prices at the end of the reporting period, less estimated costs to complete production and
bring the product to sale. NRV test for spare parts and supplies is also performed annually.
The NRV of spare parts and supplies represents the current replacement cost. An increase in
allowance for inventory obsolescence and market decline would increase recorded operating
expense and decrease current assets.

As at March 31, 2025 and 2024, the cost of inventories is lower than its NRV. The carrying

amount of inventories is P 1,712.9 million and P 1,741.7 million as at March 31, 2025 and
2024, respectively (see Note 8).
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Estimated Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on the period
over which the property, plant and equipment are expected to be available for use. The
estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically and
are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear,
technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the property,
plant and equipment. In addition, the estimation of the useful Jives of property, plant and
equipment is based on the collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical
evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is possible, however, that future financial
performance could be materially affected by changes in the estimates brought about by
changes in factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any
period would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances.

A reduction in the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment would
increase the recorded expenses and decrease the noncurrent assets.

Depreciation and amortization are calculated on a straight-line basis over the following
estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment:

Land improvements 20 years
Building and leasehold improvements 30 years
Machineries and equipment 20 years
Transportation equipment 10 years
Laboratory and office equipment and improvements 10 years

The foregoing estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed from time to
time to ensure that these are consistent with the expected economic benefits of the property,
plant and equipment.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment amounted to P4,734.2 million and
P4,758.3 million as at March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively (sce Note 10).

Estimated Useful Life of Intangible Asset

The useful life of intangible assets arc assessed at the individual asset level as having either a
finite or indefinite life. Intangible assets are regarded to have an indefinite useful life when,
based on analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows for the Group. The useful life of
tangible asset with definite life is estimated based on the period over which the asset is
expected to be available for use. Such estimation is based on a collective assessment of
industry practice and experience with similar assets.

Amortization of patents and rights is computed on the straight-line basis over the useful life
of twenty (20) years. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed from
time to time to ensure that these are consistent with the expected economic benefits of the
intangible asset.

The carrying value of intangible asset with finite useful lives amounted to nil as at March 31,
2025 and 2024 (see Nole 11).



Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

PFRS Accounting Standards requires that an impairment review be performed when certain
impairment indicators are present. This requires an estimation of the value in use of thecash-
generating units to which the assets belong. Estimating the value in use requires the Group
to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Determining the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
and other nonfinancial assets, requires the determination of future cash flows expected to be
generated from the continued use and ultimate disposal of such assets. The future event
could cause management to conclude that assets associated with an acquired business are
impaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on the
Group's consolidated financial position and financial performance.

The preparation of estimated future cash flows involves significant estimations and
assumptions. While the Group believes that its assumptions are appropriate and reasonable,
significant changes in the Group's assumptions may materially affect the assessment of
recoverable values and may lead to future additional impairment charges under PFRS
Accounting Standards.

No reversal or impairment loss was recognized in 2025, and 2024.
Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets are established for tax benefits related to deductible temporary
differences, carry forward of unused MCIT and NOLCO. These assels are periodically
reviewed for realization. Periodic reviews cover the nature and amount of deferred income
and expense items, expected timing when assets will be used or liabilities will be required to
be reported, reliability of historical profitability of businesses expected to provide future
earnings, and tax planning strategies that can be utilized to increase the likelihood that tax
assets will be realized.

As at March 31, 2025 and 2024, net deferred tax assets amounted to P121.9 million and P122.3
million, respectively (se¢c Note 31).

Estimating Contingencies

The Group evaluates legal and administrative proceedings in which it is involved based on
analysis of potential results. Management and its legal counsels do not believe that any
current proceedings will have material adverse effects on its financial position and the
results of operations. It is possible, however, that future results of operations could be
materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness of strategies relating to
these proceedings.

Retirement Benefit

The cost of a defined benefit pension plan is determined using actuarial valuations. The
actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of
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return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to
the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

The assumed discount rates were determined using the market yields on the Philippine
government bonds with terms consistent with the expected employee benefit payout as of
consolidated statements of financial position date.

Lessee - Estimating Incremental Borrowing Rale

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses
its incremental borrowing rate to measure lease liabilitics. The incremental borrowing rate is
the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with
a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the ROU asset
in a similar economic environment. The incremental borrowing rate, therefore, reflects what
the Group "would have to pay", which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or when they
need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases
are not in the subsidiary's functional currency). The Group estimales the incremental
borrowing rate using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is
required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary's stand-alone credit
rating).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND
POLICIES

The Group's financial instruments consist mainly of cash (except cash on hand), financial
assets at FVTPL, trade and other receivables, bidders and performance bonds, other non-
current assets (excluding prepayments, deferred input VAT and advances to suppliers and
contractors) and trade and other payables (excluding statutory payables), trust receipts
payable, notes payable, loans payable and lease liabilities.

The main financial risk arising from the Group's use of financial instruments includes credit
risk, market risk, and liquidity risk. The Group's BOD regularly reviews and approves the
appropriate policies for managing these financial risks, as summarized below:

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the third party will default on its obligation to the Group and
cause the Group to incur a financial loss. The Group's business policy aims to limit the
amount of credit exposure to any individual client and financial institution. The Group has
credit management policies in place to ensure that contracts are entered into with clients who
have the sufficient financial capacity and good credit history.

Trade Receivables

Management has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed
individually for creditworthiness before the Group's standard payment and delivery terms,
and conditions are offered. The Group's credit policy includes available external ratings,
financial statements, credit agency information, industry information, and, in some cases,
bank references. Credit limils are established for each customer and reviewed on a regular
basis. Any sales on credit exceeding those limits require specific approval from the upper
level of Management.



The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by transacting mainly with recognized and
creditworthy customers that have undergone its credit evaluation and approval process.
The Group provides credit limits to all its accredited customers to manage credit risk
concentrations. These limits are reviewed regularly by the Treasury Department. Trade
receivable balance is monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group's
exposure to credit losses is not significant. The maximum exposure of trade receivables
is equal to its carrying amount.

At March 31, 2025 and 2024, the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables are as follows:

Neither past due Past due but not
___nor impaired impaired Total
2025 1,835,159,046 213,593,923 2,048,752,969
2024 1,748,850,866 208,791,714 1,957,642,580

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL. for trade receivables. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments analyzed by
customer type, credit terms, and offsetting arrangements. The Group adjusts historical
default rates to forward-looking default rate by determining the closely related economic
factor affecting each customer segment (i.e., gross national income from real estate and
construction industry). At each reporting date, the observed historical default rates are
updated and changes in the forward- looking estimates are analyzed.

Aging Analysis of Trade Receivables

2025 2024
1-30 days r 793510214 T 630,771,235
31-90 days 355,271,505 315,937,310
91-120 days 238,718,443 206,616,487
Over 120 days 661,252,807 804,317,548

P 2,048,752,969 P 1,957,642,580

Trade receivables that are past due for over 120 days were not considered in default since
based on qualitative assessment, the customers are not deemed to be in significant financial
difficulty and are likely to pay their obligations.

Other Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

The Group's other financial assels at amortized cost are composed of cash, other receivables
(except advances to suppliers and contractors), bidders and performance bonds, and other
noncurrent assets (excluding prepayments, deferred input VAT, advances to suppliers and
contractors, and investment in club shares). The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by
investing its cash only with banks that have good credit standing and reputation in the local
and international banking industry. These instruments are graded in the top category by an
acceptable credit rating agency, and therefore, are considered to be low-credit-risk
investments. Other receivables are being monitored on a regular basis to ensure the timely
execution of necessary intervention efforts to minimize credit losses.
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It is the Group's policy to measure ECIL. on the above instruments on a 12-month basis.
However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL.

When determining if there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort and
that is relevant for the particular financial instrument being assessed such as, but not limited
to the following factors:

e Actual or expected external and internal credit rating downgrade;
e  Existing or forecasted adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions; and
Actual or expected significant adverse changes in the operating results of the borrower.

The Group also considers financial assets that are more than 120 days past due to be the
latest point at which lifetime ECL should be recognized unless it can demonstrate that this
does not represent significant credit risk such as when nonpayment arising from
administrative oversight rather than resulting from financial difficulty of the borrower.

The table below presents the summary of the Group's exposure to credit risk and shows the
credit quality of the assets by indicating whether the assets are subjected to 12-month ECL or
lifetime ECL. Assets that are credit-impaired are scparately presented.

2025
Financial assets at amortized cost
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL

not credit credit
12 months ECL impaired impaired Total
Cash in banks P 920,789,045 P 3 P - P 920,789,045
Trade and other receivables
Trade - 2,048,752,969 - 2,048,752,969
Advances to officers and
employees - current 59,644,495 % = 59,644 495
Others* 113,554,315 2 z 113,554,315
Other current assels
Bidders and performance
bonds 9,253,899 - - 9,384,539
Other non-current assets:
Rental and security
deposits 177,992,855 - - 177,992,855
Bidders and performance
bonds, net of current
portion 13,880,849 - - 13,880,849
Advances to officers and
employees 31,915,081 - - 31,915,081
P 1,327,030,539 P2,048,752,969 P - P 3,375,783,508

* Excluding receivable from SSS amounting to P5.3 million as at March 31, 2025.
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2024
Financial assets at amortized cost
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL

not credit credit
12 months ECL impaired impaired Total
Cash in banks P 818,366,786 P - P - P 848,366,786
‘Trade and other receivables
Trade - 1,957,642,580 - 1,957,642,580
Advances to officers and
employees ~ current 63,751,787 - - 63,751,787
Others* 127,122,358 - - 127,122,358
Other current assets
Bidders and performance
bonds 9,369,943 - - 9,369,943

Other non-current assets:
Rental and security
deposits 169,175,352 - - 169,175,352
Bidders and performance
bonds, net of current

portion 14,054,915 - - 14,054,915

Advances to officers and
employees 30,272,272 - - 30,272,272
P 1,262,113413 P1,957,642,580 P - P 3,219,755,993

* Excluding receivable from SSS amounting to P5.1 million as at December 31, 2024.
Market risks

The Group is exposed to markel risks, primarily those related to foreign currency risk, equity
price risk, and interest rate risk. BOD actively monitors these exposures as follows:

Foreign currency risk
The BOD reviews and agrees on policies for this risk by maintaining foreign currency
exposure within acceptable limits. The Group believes that its profile of foreign currency

exposure on its assets and liabilities is within conservative limits.

Information on the Group's foreign currency-denominated deposits and investment in
portfolio and their Philippine peso equivalent:

2025 - 2024
Foreign Peso Foreign Peso
Currency equivalent currency equivalent
US Dollar (USD) 1,570,313 90,104,579 4,890,527 P 283,699,471
Furo (EUR) 12,487 775,104 12,818 775,104



With the translation of this foreign currency denominated asset, the Group reported net
unrealized foreign exchange gain of P 0.9 million in 2025 and P9.6 million in 2024
(see Note 24). These resulted from the movements of the Philippine peso against the following
foreign currency exchange rates:

2025 2024

ushD P 57.38 P 58.010
EUR 62.07 60.470

The analysis below is performed for the effect of a reasonable possible movement of the
currencies against the Philippine peso with all other variables held constant on the Group's
excess of receipts over expenses:

Impact on excess of receipts
over expenses

Philippine Peso
depreciation
Currency (appreciation) 2025 2024
UsD +0.75% P 4715750 (P 4,715,750)
UsD -0.75% 460,307 ( 460,307)
EUR +3.00% ( 237,186) 237,186
EUR -3.00% 283,691) ( 283,691)

The change in currency rate is based on the Group's best estimate of expected change
considering historical trends and experiences. Positive change in currency rate reflects a
stronger peso against foreign currency. On the other hand, a negative change in currency
rate reflects a weaker peso against foreign currency.

Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the Group will incur economic losses due to adverse changes
in a particular stock index. The Group's equity price risk arises from its financial assets at

FVTPL and financial assets at FVOCI.

The Group's policy is to maintain the risk to an acceptable level. Movement in share price is
monitored regularly to determine the impact on its financial position.

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk for changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group's interest-bearing payables to local financial institutions with fixed interest rates.

Exposure of the Group to changes in the interest rates is not significant.

There is no other impact on the Group's equity other than those already affecting the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.



Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is a risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due. The Group manages liquidity risk by forecasting projected cash flows and
maintaining a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility. Treasury controls and
procedures are in place to ensure that sufficient cash is maintained to cover daily operational
and working capital requirements. BOD closely monitors the Group's future and contingent
obligations and set up required cash reserves as necessary in accordance with internal
requirements.

The table below analyzes the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group into their
relevant maturity groups based on the remaining period at the consolidated statements of
financial position dates to their contractual maturities or expected repayment dates:

As al March 31, 2025 _Uptoayear 1-3 years 3Syears Over 5 years Noterm Total
Financlal assets:
Cash P 920789015 P - P - 14 - | 4 - P 920,759,045
Financial assets at FVTPL 233,556,613 - - - - 233,556,613
Trade and other receivables
Trade 1,898,522,838 - - - - 1,898,522838
Advances to suppliers and
contractors 84,650,610 - - = - 84,650,610
Advances to officers and
employees current 59,644,496 - - - - 59,644,496
Others® 28,903,705 - - - 28,903,705
Other current assets
Bidders and performance
bonds 9253899 . - - - 9253899
Other noncurrent assels
Rental and security
deposits - - 177,992.855 - - 177,992855
Bidders and performance
bonds net of current
portion - 13,580,849 - - - 13,580,849
Advances to officers and
employees nel of current
portion - 31,915,081 - - - 31,915081
Investment in club sh - ) - - N - 200000 200000
P3235321206 P 45795930 P 177992855 P - P 200000  P3,459,309,991
*Excluding receivable from SSS amounting to P5.3 million as at March 31, 2025.
As al March 31, 2025 Up fo a year 1-3 years 3-5 years Over5 years No term Total
Financial liabilities:
I'rade and other payables
Trade P 427565788 P - P - | - P - P 427,565,783
Accrued expenses 90,774,310 - - . - 90,774,310
Advances from officers
and employees - - - - - -
Trust receipts payable 544,979,122 - - - 34,979,122
Notes payable 2387429476 - . - . 2387 ADAT6
Loans payable 241731814 633,001,236 141,250,000 - . 1,015,983,050
Lease liabilitics 66815432 119,633,720 - e - 186,449,152
P3,759,295942 P 75263495 P 141250000 P - .= P4,653,180,898
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As at December 31, 2024 _Uptoayear 1-3 years _ 35years Over 5 years No term Total

Financial assets:
Cash P 85762959 P - P - r - P - P B57.622959
Financial assets at FVTPL 233,556,613 - - - 233,556,613
Trade and other receivables
Irade 1,807,412419 - - - - 1807 412,449
Advances to suppliers and
contractors 99,962,161 - - . - 99,962,161
Advances to officers and
employees current 63,751,787 - - - . 63,751,787
Others* 27,160,197 - - - 27,160,197
Other current assets
Bidders and performance
bonds 9,369,943 - - - - 9,369,943
Other noncurrent assets
Rental and security
deposils : 169,175,352 . - 169,175,352
Bidders and performance
bonds net of current
portion - 14054915 - - - 14,051,915
Advances to officers and
employees net of curnent
portion - 30,272.272 . - 30,272,272
Investment in club shares - - - - 200,000 200,000
13,098,836,100 P 44327187 P 169,175,332 P - P 200,000 3312538643

*Excluding receivable front SSS antounting to P5.1 million as at December 31, 2024.

Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables

Trade P 31949747 P - r - P - r - P 345494747
Accrued expenses 73,235,206 - - - - 73,235,206

Advances from officers
and employees 22591 - - - - 222591
Trust receipts payable 498,734,361 - - - - 498,734,364
Notes payable 2,541,683 889 - = - - 2,511,683 889
Loans payable 285,650,564 633,001,236 141,250,000 - - 1,059,901,800
Lease fiabilities 66983492 125533590 - — - __192517.082
P3816004853 P 73853482 P 141,250000 P - P - 1’4,715,789,679




Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
assets measured at fair value and financial liability for which fair value is disclosed and the
corresponding fair value hierarchy:

2025
Quoted Prices Significant Significant
in Active Observable Unobservable
Carrying Markets Inputs Inputs
Amounts (Level 1) (Tevel 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets:
Cash 920,789,045 P - P 920,789,045 P -
Financial assets at FVPL 233,556,613 233,356,613 - -
Trade and other receivables
Trade 1,898,522,838 - - 1,898,522.838
Advances to suppliers
and contractors 84,650,610 - - 84,650,610
Advances to officers and
employees current 59,644,496 - - 59,644,496
Others* 28,903,705 - = 28,903,705
(Other current asscts
Bidders and performance
bonds 9,253,899 - - 9,253,899
Oher noncurrent assets
Rental and sccurity
deposits 177,992,855 . - 177,992,855
Bidders and performance
bonds net of current
portion 13,880,849 - - 13,880,849
Advances to officers and
employee net of
current portion 31,915,081 - - 31,915,081
Investment inclubshares 200,000 200,000 : - -

P 3,459,309,991 P 233,756,613 P 920,789,045 P 2,304,764,333

*Excluding receivable from SSS amounting to P5.3 million as al March 31, 2025.

Quoted Prices Significant Significant
in Active Observable Unobservable
Carrying Markets Inputs Inputs
Amounts (Level 1) (Level 2) _ (Level3)
Financial liabilities:
‘Trade and other payables
Trade P 427,565,788 P - P - P 427,565,788
Accrued expenses 90,774,310 - - 90,774,310
Advances from officers
and employees < - - -
Trust receipts payable 544,979,122 - - 544,979,122
Notes payable 2387429476 - - 2,387,429476
Loans payable 241,731,814 = v 241,731,814
Lease habilities 66,815,432 - = - 66,815,432
P 4,653,180,898 P - P - P 4,653,180,598
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2024

Quoted Prices Significant Significant
in Active Observable Unobservable
Carrying Markets Inputs Inputs
Amounts (Level 1) (level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets:
Cash P 857622939 P - r 857,622,959 P -
Financial assets at FVPL 233,556,613 233,556,613 - -
‘Irade and other receivables
Trade 1.807,412,449 - . 1,807,412,449
Advances lo suppliers
and contractors 99,962,161 - - 99,962,161
Advances to officers and
employees current 63,751,787 = - 63,751,787
Others* 127,122,358 - - 127,122,358
Other current assets
Bidders and performance
bonds 9,369,943 - - 9,369,943
Oher noncurrent assels
Rental and security
deposits 169,175,352 - - 169,175,352
Bidders and performance
bonds net of current
portion 14,054,915 T - 14,054,915
Advances to officers and
employee net of
current portion 30,272272 2 = 30,272,272
Investment in club shares 200,000 200,000 - -

P 3,412,500,809 P 233,756,613 P 857,622,959 P 23201,121,237

*Excluding receivable from SSS amounting to P5.1 million as al December 31, 2024,

Quoted Prices Significant Significant
n Active Observable Unobservable
Carrying Markets Inputs Inputs
Amounts (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial habilities:
Trade and other payables
Trade P 349,494,747 P - r - | 349,494,747
Accrued expenses 73,235,206 - - 73,235,206
Advances from officers
and employees 222,591 - - 22,591
Trust receipts payable 498,734,364 - - 498,734,364
Notes payable 2,541,683,889 - - 2,541,683,889
Loans payable 1,059,901,800 - - 1,059,901,800
Lease liabilities 192,517,082 - &= 192,517,082
P 4715789679 r - P - P 4,715789,679

Assumption used to estimale fair values

The carrying amounts of cash, trade and other receivables, bidders and performance bonds,
trade and other payables, notes payable, and trust receipts payable approximate their fair
values due to the short-term maturities of the financial assets and financial liabilities.



Fair Value Hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities:

Tevel 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

e Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

There were no reclassifications made between the different fair value hierarchy levels in 2024
and 2023.

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to secure ongoing financial
needs of the Group to continue as a going concern as well as to maintain a strong credit
standing and healthy capital ratio in order to support the business and maximize
shareholder value.

The Group considers equity contributions from shareholders and retained earnings as its
capital totaling P5,882.9 million and P5,845.2million as at December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively. The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments when there
are changes in economic conditions, business activities, expansion programs, and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to manage the capital structure, the Group
may adjust its borrowings, adjust dividend payment to shareholders, or raise equity.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in capital management objectives, policies or processes in 2025
and 2024.

5. CASH

This account consists of:

2025 2024
Cash on hand P 9,441,213 P 9,256,173
Cash in banks 920,789,045 848,366,786

P 930230258 P 857622959

Cash in banks earns interest at the respective prevailing bank deposit rates. Interest income
earned on cash in banks and short-term placements, presented in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, amounted to P 0.3 million, and P0.4 million in 2025
and 2024, respectively (se¢ Note 24).



FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (FVTPL)

Financial assets at FVTPL represent investment portfolio consisting of bonds and equity
instruments held by the Group for trading purposes. As at March 31, 2025 and 2024, financial
assets at FVTPL amounted to P233.6 million and P233.6 million, respectively.

The following are the movements of financial assets at FVIPL:

2025 2024
Balance at beginning of year P 202005397 P 202,005,397
Change in fair value(see Note 24) 22,466,965 22,466,965
Unrealized foreign gain (loss) 9,084,251 ( 9,084,251)

P 233,556,613 P 233,556,613

The Group's financial assets at FVTPL as at March 31, 2025 and 2024 are carried at fair values
based on sources classified under the Level 1 category. The fair values of financial assets at
FVTPL are based on quoted market prices or bidding dealer price quotations from active
markets as at their reporting date.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

This account consists of:

2025 ) 2024
Trade:

Third-party 2,048,752,969 P 1,957,642,580
Less: allowance for expected credit losses 150,230,131 150,230,131
Net 1,898,522,838 1,807,412,449

Advances to suppliers and contractors - current

(see Note 12) 84,650,610 99,962,161

Advances to officers and employees - current

(see Notes 12 and 18) 59,644,496 63,751,787
Others 28,903,705 132,197,176

2,071,721,649 P 2,103,323,573

Trade receivables are unsecured and non-interest-bearing and generally have credit terms of
120 days (see Note 4).

Advances to suppliers and contractors represent various partial payments for the purchase
orders of materials and packaging supplies. Advances to contractors pertain to payment of
partial cost of contract to renovate leased stores and branches. The amounts that are expected
to be applied against the actual construction cost within 12 months are recognized under
other current assets. The remaining amount to be amortized is recognized under other non-
current assets (see Note 12).
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Advances to officers and employees pertain to housing, car, salary and other loans granted
to the Group's officers and employees which are collectible through salary deduction. These
are interest-bearing and have various maturity dates ranging from 2023 to 2026.

Other receivables pertain to non-trade receivables from various third parties for transactions not
directly related to its normal course of business.

The following are the movements of allowance for expected credit losses:

2025 2024
Balance at beginning of year P 133372112 P 133,372,112
Provision for the year (sec Note 23) 16,858,019 16,858,019
Balance at end of year P 150,230,131 P 150,230,131

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their fair values due to its
short- term maturities.

No receivables were used as collateral to any of the Group's liabilities in 2025 and 2024.

INVENTORIES

This account consists of:

2025 2024
Raw materials P 659,974,690 P 693,100473
Finished goods 582,626,186 553,316,517
Merchandise inventory 214,900,566 254,356,118
Supplies 255,397,570 240,951,125

P 1712809012 P 1,741,724,233

Cost of inventories as at March 31, 2025 and 2024 is lower than its NRV. Hence, there were
no write-down of inventories in both years. Cost of inventories sold amounted to P1,073.5
million, P743.5 million in 2025 and 2024, respectively (see Note 20).

No inventories were pledged to any of the Group's liabilities as at March 31, 2025 and 2024.
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9.

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

This account consists of:

2025 2024 .
Prepayments P 330,321,168 P 330,908,966
Creditable withholding tax 352,308 17,389,510
Creditable withholding VAT 9,584,539 9,584,539
Current portion of bidders and performance
bonds (see Note 12) 9,253,899 9,369,943
Current portion of prepaid marketing and
development expense (see Note 12) B 7,679,177
Current portion of deferred input VAT
(see Note 12) 4,982,813 6,899,167
Input VAT - B

P 354,494,727 P 381,831,302

Prepayments consist of advance payments for utilities, advertising, rent, insurance, taxes,
and other miscellaneous expenses. Prepaid expenses are charged to the operation in the next
financial year as the related expenses are incurred.

Creditable withholding tax (CWT) represents the amount withheld in relation to sales. These
are recognized upon collection and are utilized as tax credils against income tax due as
allowed by the Philippine taxation laws and regulations.

Creditable withholding VAT (CVAT) refers to deductions made by the government from
their payments for sales of goods and are creditable from VAT output tax, upon submission
of the relative Certificate of Withholding VAT from these customers.

Bidders and performance bonds refer to cash bonds deposited with customers as required by
its bidding procedures. Bidders bond are withdrawable within thirty (30) days from
completion of bidding, while performance bonds are withdrawable within six (6) to twenty
four (24) months from completion of sales contracts. The amounts that are withdrawable in
the next 12 months are recognized under "Other current assets". The remaining amount is
recognized under. “Other noncurrent assets" (see Note 12).

Prepaid marketing and development expense refer to payments made to client hospitals of
the Group as stipulated on long-term sales contracts ranging from three (3) to ten (10) years.
These payments are to cover the client hospitals'’ marketing development expenses to
promote the use of the Group's products during the contract period. The amounts that are to
be amortized in the next 12 months are recognized under "Other current assets". The
remaining amount to be amortized is recognized under "Other noncurrent assets" (see Note
12).

Deferred input VAT arises from purchases of capital goods above P1.0 million. This is
amortized for a period of five years or over the useful life of the asset purchased, whichever
is shorter. The amounts that are to be amortized in the next 12 months are recognized under
"Other current assets".



10.

Input VAT is a tax imposed on purchases of goods and services. These are available for offset
against output VAT in future periods.

The Group evaluated whether there is any indications of impairment on other current assets.
Based on management’s evaluation, no impairment losses were identified as at March 31,
2025 and 2024.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

This account consists of:

Cost:

Machineries and equipment

Bui
im

Land and improvements
Laboratory and office equipment

ilding and leasehold
provements

and improvements

Transportation equipment

Less: accumulated depreciation
Machineries and equipment

Building and leasehold

imy

Land and improvements
lLaboratory and office equipment

provements

and improvements

Transportation equipment

Cost:

Machineries and equipment

Bu

Land and improvemenis
Laboratory and office equipment

Transportation equipment

Less: accumulated depreciation
Machineries and equipment

ilding and leaschold
improvements

and improvementls

Building and leasehold

Land and improvements
Laboratory and office equipment

Transportation equipment

improvements

and improvements

P 4,828,297,378
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Disposals/
2024 Additions Reclassification 2025
P 5698,250,978 P 3,348,963 - P 5728599941
3,043,052,771 19,092,188 - 3,076,530,502
166,771,79% 166,771,79%
749,354,277 2,735,693 737,704,425
50,952,894 i 50,952,894
9,708,382.716 52,176,843 —— 9,760,559,558
3,351,940,522 22,620,919 3,374,561,439
1,116,683175 28,309,184 1,144,992,359
23,365,165 40,765 23,405,930
418,023,333 25,065,999 443,089,333
40,070,004 = 226,947 40,296,951
4950,082,199 76,263,815 5,026,316,012
P 4758300517 P 4,734213,544
2023 Additions Reclassification 2024 i
P 55%,131,105 r 108,119,873 P - P 5,698,250,978
2,981,114,994 61,937,777 - 3,043,052,771
173,340,563 - ( 6,568,767 ) 166,771,79%
725,659,070 23,695,207 - 749,354,277
49,295,534 2321176 ( 666,816) 50,952,894
9,519,541,266 196,077,033 ( 7,235,583) 9,708,382,716
3,225,202,929 126,737,593 - 3,351,940,522
1,010,195,031 106,488,144 1,116,683,175
23,202,104 163,061 - 23,365,165
392,849,706 25,173,627 418,023,333
39,794,118 824693 ( 548,807) 40,070,004
4,691,243 888 259,387,118 548,807) 4,950,082,199

P 4,758,300,517



‘The depreciation on property, plant and equipment are charged to the following:

11.

March 2025 Dec. 2024
Cost of goods manufactured and
sold (see Notes 20 and 21) P 51,115,225 P 166,411,095
Selling and distribution expenses
(see Note 22) 13,003,247 32,653,485
General and administrative
expenses (see Note 23) 12,145,343 60,322,538

P 76,263,815 T 259,387,118

In 2024, the Parent Company sold parcels of land from Ibaan, Batangas and transportation
equipment with book values amounting to P6.6 million and P0.1 million, respectively. The
proceeds from this sale amounted to P43.1 million resulting to gain on sale of property and
equipment amounted to P36.5 million (see Note 26).

There were no capitalizable interest for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024.

The property, plant and equipment pledged as security for liabilities in 2025 and 2024 are
disclosed in Note 15.

Management believes that there is no indication that an impairment loss has occurred during
the year. The carrying values of the property, plant and equipment approximate their fair
values.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

This account consists the Group'strademarks and licenses and patents and rights.

Trademarks and licenses

In 2016, the Group acquired the trade name "Dr. Edwards” from Antech and the entire
products manufactured under the trade name (see Note 8). Trademarks and licenses pertain
to the international trademarks (a) Lidex®; (b) Lidemol®; (c) Synelar®; and (d) Dobutrex®
which the Group acquired from Stiefel Laboratories, Inc. and Glaxosmithkline Philippines,
Inc. in 2011.

The balance of trademarks and licenses amounted to P268.13 million as at March 31, 2025
and 2024.

Parents and Rights
Patents and rights are carried at acquisition cost which is amortized over a period of twenty

(20) years. The Group has registered trade names and trademarks with the Department of
Trade - Bureau of Patents, Trademarks and Technology (BPTT).
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Movement of patents and rights account as at March 31, 2025 and 2024 are as follows:

2025 2024
Cost P 3,605,080 P 3,605,080
Less: Accumulated amortization 3,605,080 3,605,080
Balance at end of year P - P -

Amortization is charged to general and administrative expense in the Group's consolidated
statements of comprehensive income (se¢ Note 23).

The Group assessed its intangible assets whether there is any indications of impairment.
Based on management's evaluation, no impairment losses were identified as at March 31,
2025 and 2024.

12. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

This account consists of:

2025 2024

Rental and security deposits (see Note 30) P 177,992,855 P 169,175,352
Advances to suppliers and contractors

net of current portion (see Nole 7) 69,742,861 75,494,072
Prepaid marketing and development expense

net of current portion (see Note 9) 10,104,285 12,645,940
Advances to officers and employees, net of
current portion (see Notes 7 and 18) 31,915,081 30,272,272
Bidders and performance bonds, net of
current portion (see Note 9) 13,880,849 14,054,915
Deferred input VAT, net of current
portion (see Note 9) 2,515,367 3,583,572
Investment in club shares 200,000 200,000
Others - 2,830,810

P 306,351,299 P 308,256,933

Rental and security deposits represent deposits made on lease contracts of various branches
and commissary which are recoverable at the end of lease terms.

Investment in club shares represents the Group's investment in Casino Espanol de Manila
(CEdM) shares. The Group's investment in club shares is classified as equity instrument
designated at fair value through OCI as at December 31, 2024 and 2023.

No impairment loss was recognized in 2025 and 2024.

The carrying values of other noncurrent assets approximate their fair values.
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13.

14.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

This account consists of:

2025 2024
Trade
Third party 395,636,696 P 349,494,747
Accrued expenses 90,774,310 73,235,206
Payable to government agencies 22,453,218 66,279,059
Deferred revenue 9,475,875 371,514
Advances from officers and employeces - 222,591

518,340,099 P 489,603,117
Trade payables are unsecured and noninterest-bearing and are normally settled in 30 to 90
days. This account represents payables arising mainly from purchases of inventories.

Accrued expenses pertain to accrual of employee benefits, repairs and maintenance, utilities
and other operating rclated expenses. These are unsecured and noninterest-bearing and are
normally settled in 30 days.

Payable to government agencies includes deferred output VAT, withholding taxes, and
mandatory contributions and loan payment to the Social Security System (SSS), Philhealth
Insurance Corporation (PHIC) and Home Development Mutual Fund (HDMF) which are
normally settled in the subsequent month.

Deferred revenue pertains to customers' purchase of gift certificates that are still outstanding
as at March 31, 2025 and 2024.

The carrying values of trade and other payables approximate their fair values.

NOTES PAYABLE

This account pertains to the Group's Omnibus credit lines with an aggregate amount of
about P4.0 billion on a clean basis from various commercial banks. These credit lines provide
for cash borrowings (Peso or Dollar), Export/Domestic Bills Purchase Lines, Banker’s
Acceptances and Letters of Credit (with no marginal deposit at opening). The Group's
various obligations are secured by the Surety of a Group's key management officer.
Availments are for a period of
180 to 360 days, with interest payable monthly or every 60 to 90 days in arrears at prevailing
bank loan rates.

The movements in this account are as follows:

2025 2024
Balance at beginning of the year 2,541,683,889 P 2,606,511,000
Availments 892,700,000 3,043,952,209
Repayments ( 1,046,954,413) (__ 3,108,779,320)
Balance at end of the period 2,387,429,476 P 2,541,683,889
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15.

Notes payables are unsecured and peso-denominated bank loans that bear interest rates
ranging from 5.0% to 10.0% and 5.0% to 9.8%per annum in 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Interest expenses incurred in March 31, 2025 and 2024 amounted to 75.2 million, and P73.3
million, respectively (see Note 25).

LOANS PAYABLE

This account pertains to various loans availed by the Group from local banks. Principals are
payable quarterly while the interest is payable monthly up to maturity date that varies from

three (3) to ten (10) years from availment date.

Loans payable is presented in the statements of financial position as follows:

2025 2024
Current r 241,731,814 T 285,650,564
Non-current 771,242,762 774,251,237

P 1012974576 P 1,059,901,801

The movements in this account are as follows:

2025 2024
Balance at beginning of year 1,059,901,801 P 876,658,333
Availments 209,791,384
Repayments ( 46,927,225) ( 26,547,916)
Balance at end of year 1,012,974,576 P 1,059,901,801

The loans are collateralized by a mortgage on land with an area of 36,314 square meters in
Cavite; building and improvements on land; and machineries and equipment consisting of
three production lines. Details of fair value of property, plant and equipment pledged as
security to these loans are as follows:

2025 2024
Land P 446,662,000 P 446,662,000
Building and improvements 156,746,000 156,746,000
Machineries and equipment 1,974,357,300  1,974,357,300

P_2,577,765,300 P 2,577,765300

Property, plant and equipment are stated at its fair values which were appraised by an
accredited external appraiser.

Long-term loans bear interest rates ranging from 6.5% to 8.5% in 2024 and 4.8% to 8.5% in
2023 that will mature on various dates starting in 2020 through 2028. These loans are subject
to interest repricing periodically.
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16.

17.

More than 1
year but less More than 3

Year Description Inlerest rates Within 1 year than 3 years __years Total
2025 Term loans 6.58% t0 8.5% P 241,731514 P 633,001,237 P 141,250,000 P1,012,974,576
2024 Term loans 48%108.5% P 285,650,564 P 633,001,237 P 141,250,000 P1,059,901,501

Interest expense incurred in 2025 and 2024 amounted to P63.5million and P73.3 million,
respectively (see Note 25).

TRUST RECEIPTS PAYABLE

This account pertains to trust receipts availed by the Group from various local banks in
connection with its importation of raw materials, bearing interest rates from 5.8% to 9.0%
and 4.8% to 8.5%per annum in 2025 and 2024, respectively. This is part of the availments
from Omnibus Credit lines of various commercial banks.

Credit lines provide for (a) no margin deposits at opening of letters of credit; (b) foreign
exchange conversion at prevailing bank rate; and (c) trust receipts available up to 180 days
with interest payable monthly or every 30 to 90 days in arrears at prevailing bank loan rate.

As at March 31, 2025 and 2024, outstanding trust receipts payable amounted to
P544.9 million and P498.7 million, respectively.

Interest expense incurred in March 2025 and March 31, 2024 amounted to P9.8 million and
P7.5million, respectively (see Note 25).

EQUITY
Capital Stock
Capital stock consists of:
Number of
shares ~ Amount
Common stock - P1 par value
Authorized 5,000,000,000 P 5,000,000,000
Issued and outstanding 4,112,140,540 P 4,112,140,540
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Total shares registered and outstanding as at March 31, 2025 and 2024 is 4,112.1 million.
These shares are held by 540 and 541 stockholders as at December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively. There have been no recent changes in the number of shares issued and
outstanding. Delails of the Group's common shares registration are as follows:

_Authorized shares _Number of shares _Issued offer price
1988 1,200,000 300000 P 100
1994 18,800,000 4,700,000 100
1997 - 200,000 100
1999 1,980,000,000 594,800,000 1
August 5, 1999 600,000,000 600,000,000 1
March 29, 2001 1,200,000,000 300,000,000 1
December 28, 2001 - 225,000,000 1
December 26, 2002 - 275,000,000 1
December 15, 2003 = 200,000,000 1
December 20, 2004 - 220,000,000 1
December 21, 2006 - 242,000,000 1
July 24, 2007 - 266,200,000 1
December 19, 2007 - 292,820,000 1
December 17, 2008 - 322,102,000 1
September 6, 2010 1,200,000,000 300,000,000 1
April 12, 2011 - 269,018,540 1
5,000,000,000 4,112,140,540

Additional Paid-in Capital

Additional paid-in capital consists of amount received in excess of the par value of the shares
issued, net of directly attributable transaction costs on the initial public offering.

Dividend Declaration

In the meeting held on October 29, 2024, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the
declaration of cash dividends of P0.06 per share equivalent to P246.7 million from
unrestricted retained earnings as at December 31, 2023 to all shareholders of record as at
November 15, 2024, payable on December 2, 2024.

In the meeting held on October 24, 2023, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the
declaration of cash dividends of P0.035 per share equivalent to P143.9 million from
unrestricted retained earnings as at December 31, 2022 to all shareholders of record as at
November 10, 2023, payable on November 28, 2023.
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Prior Period Adjustments

Prior period adjustments pertain to adjustment on input VAT from exempt sales from the
Parent Company and adjustment made for right-of-use asset and lease liabilities from
existing leases from Hemotek, a subsidiary.

a. Adjustment on input VAT

During the year, the Parent Company identified a prior period adjustment related to
input VAT amounting to P57.9 million, which pertains to exempt sales disallowed by the
Bureau of Internal Revenue during their examination. The disallowance of the exempt
sales occurred in previous years, but the error was considered immaterial to the financial
statements for those years.

b. Adjustment on right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

During the year, Hemotek, a subsidiary, conducted a review of its existing lease contracts
and identified a leasc that required accounting under PFRS 16, Leases. The resulting
adjustment had a net impact of P0.7 million on retained earnings.

In accordance with PAS 8Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, the
Group opted not to restate the prior year financial statements, as the amount is not
considered significant to the financial position or performance of those periods. Instead, the
Group has charged the adjustment in the opening balance of retained earnings as al January
1, 2024. As a result, the opening balance of retained earnings as at January 1, 2024 was
adjusted by P58,620,975.

The affected accounts as at January 1, 2024 are presented as follows:

Opening Adjusted
balance Adjustments Balance
Statement of Financial Position
Other current assels P 555205785 (P 57,874,585) P 497,331,200
Right-of-use assets 132,893,063 8,245,278 141,138,341
Deferred tax asset, net 109,149,428 248,796 109,398,224
I.ease liabilities 148,080,009 9,240,464 157,320,473

Statement of changes in equity
Retained earnings 1,691,589,188 (  58,620,975) 1,632,968,213
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18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one of the party has the ability to control the other
party or exercises significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. This includes: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, control are controlled by, or under common control with the Group;
(b) other related parties; and (c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the
voting power of the Group that give them significant influence over the Group and close

members of the family of any such individual.

{=) Parent Company

US Automotive Co,, Inc.

(®)  Other Relsted Partics
Fhil. Trust Company

Manila Bulketin Publishing
Corporation

Advance Solutions, Inc.

Manila Hotel Corporation

Man:ls Pnme Land
Holdings Inc.

{€)  Key Managowent Persornel
Diretor and officer

e

Pt

Classification

Rental and light
and water
administrative
and expenses
(Note 30)

Dividends paid
(Node 77)

Cash in bank
(Note 5)

Trade payables
and marketing
fe development
X

{Nofes 13 and 22}

Property, plant
and equipmwnt
(Nole 10)

Miscellaneous
expense under
selling and
distribution
expense(Noles
13 amd 22)

Lease (Now 30)

Advances to
olfficers and
emp

(Noles 7 omd 12)

Terms and
Condition

Loase torm is for
year penod
renewable
annually upon
mutual
areement

Paid in cash
noninterest
boaring

Eam inierest at
the prevailing,
bank deposits
aws,

urampaired

Unseured non-
interest boaring,
0 berm pavable
in cash no
guarantees

Unsecured non-
interest bearing,
X days wrms,
payable in cash,
N0 guaraniess

Unsextured non-
interest boaring
30 days torm,
payable in cash
0O ZUAFIMNS

Unsecured non-
Interest beanng,
30 days berm,
pavable in cash,
no gusrantee

Unsecurad
Interest bearing,
recesvable
through salary
deduchion

Allowance for
expected credit

lossesfexpected
credit losses for
the year

Amount of the
transaction (in

millions)

02

11

25

15

30

134

Qutstanding,

Balance

518

10

509

514

Other related parties are entitics that are owned and controlled by the major sharcholders of
the Group and neither a subsidiary nor an associate of the Group.
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The following are other relevant related party disclosures:

Identification

US Automotive Co,, Inc.

Phil. Trust Company

Manila Bulletin Publishing

Corporation

Advance Solutions, Inc.

Manila Prime Holdings, Inc.

Director and Officer

_Nature of Relationship

Ultimate Parent Company

Other related parties under
common control of certain
major stockholders

Other related parties under
common control of certain
major stockholders

Other related parties under
common control of certain
major stockholders

Other related parties under
common control of certain
major stockholders

Key Management personnel/

stockholders

Business Purpose of On-going Contractual or
Arrangement Other Commitment

Lease of principal office Lease contract (Nofe 30)
Dividends paid No contract
Engaged in regular bank
transaction No contract
Availment of hotel services No contract
Availment of Computer No contracl
equipment
Rental of warchouse Lease contract (Note 30)
Advances which include No contract

salary and emergency loans

payable within a year through

salary deduction

Transactions with related parties were made at normal market prices. An assessment is
undertaken each financial year through a review of the financial position of the related party
and the market in which the related party operates.

Transactions with related parties have been fairly evaluated since the Group treated it same
with the transactions to third parties.

There are no parties that fall outside the definition of "related parties”" with whom the Group
or its related parties have a relationship that enables the parties to negotiate terms of material
transactions that may not be available from other, more clearly independent parties at an

arm’s length basis.

wh
(3]



19. REVENUES

This account consists of:

2025 2024
Sale of goods 1,145,461,490 P 834,173,643
Sale of services 481,451,222 334,636,997
Total sales ( net) 1,629,912,712 1,168,810,640

The table below disaggregate the Group's revenue by geographical markets:

2025 2024
Local sales 1,607,388,741 P 1,125,135,340
Export sales
ASEAN 13,514,383 26,405,169
Other Asian Countries 179,544 676,502
Others 8,830,044 16,593,628

1,629,912,712 P 1,168,810,640




This account consists of:

Cost of goods manufactured:

Direct materials
Direct labor (see Note 28)
Manufacturing overhead
(see Note 21)
Total manufacturing cost
Add finished goods,
beginning (see Nofe 8)
Good available for sale
TLess finished goods,
ending (see Note 8)

Merchandise inventory:
Merchandise inventory,
beginning (see Note 8)
Add purchases
Goods available for sale
Less merchandise inventory,
ending (see Note 8)

Cost of services:
Supplies used
Depreciation

(see Notes 10 and 30)
Personnel expenses

(see Note 28)
Qutside services
Rentals (see Note 30)
Communication, light

and water
Professional fees
Laboratory fees
Spoilage
Others

P

20. COST OF GOODS MANUFACTURED AND SOLD

. N 2024
313,059,639 227,589,118
56,024,595 49,589,632
259,016,332 200,413,406
628,100,566 477,592,156
553,316,516 574,269,466
1,181,417,083 1,051,861,623
582,626,185 650,133,243
598,790,897 401,728,379
254,356,117 229,188,392
139,234,663 69,615,704
393,590,781 298,804,097
214,900,566 162,533,311
178,690,214 136,270,786
106,141,837 80,543,799
33,903,764 21,899,802
15,271,679 15,854,435
23,781,111 20,475,451
60,171,973 29,234,367
19,279,998 16,556,223
27,629,387 12,260,557
2,307,424 322,276
7,563,910 8,336,669
296,051,087 205,483,581

P 1,073532195 P__ 743,482,746



The details of direct materials are presented below:

2025 ‘ 2024

Raw materials, beginning P 693,100473 T 645,351,328
Add purchases 279,933,855 148,234,908
Raw materials available for use 973,034,329 793,586,236
Less raw materials,

ending (see Note 8) (659,974,690) (565,997,117)
Direct materials used P 313,159,639 P 227,589,118

. MANUFACTURING OVERHEAD
This account consists of:
2025 2024

Repair and maintenance P 69,223,301 P 56,012,051
Gas and oil 59,138,501 40,683,659
Light and water 35,063,650 27,592,559
Personnel expenses (see Note 28) 21,338,183 23,814,133
Depreciation (see Note 10) 23,413,011 23,002,355
Laboratory supplies 10,060,031 3,869,835
Production supplies 8,395,139 6,546,078
Transportation and travel 6,241,935 3,964.632
Rentals(see Note 30) 1,384,143 1,008,000
Insurance 2,023,327 1,092,549
Security services 1,137,776 1,052,670
Representation and entertainment 2,022,297 1,154,340
Taxes and licenses 2,570,199 750,014
Office and warehouse supplies 587,518 395,463
Research and development 1,240,893 285,572
Security agency fee 112,877 104,397
Postage, telephone andtelegram 82,639 66,151
Professional fees 81,000 86,900
Miscellaneous 14,899,912 8,571,748

P 259,016,332 P 200.413.406

Expenses included under miscellaneous pertain to other cost of goods manufactured that the
individual amount of which are immaterial and below 1 percent of the Group's total
manufacturing overhead.
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22. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS

This account consists of:

2025 2024

Delivery expense p 89,147,945 p 63,693,214
Personnel expenses (see Note 28) 41,327,657 32,899,475
Marketing and development

expense (see Notes 9 and 12) 30,083,021 15,814,016
Senior citizen and person with

disability (PWD) discount 34,354,792 24,653,745
Transportation and travel 24,581,974 14,127,334
Depreciation (see Notes 10 and 30) 13,003,247 8,163,371
Taxes and licenses 11,936,436 9,094,162
Training and seminars 16,811,796 13,731,243
Representation and entertainment 2,355,514 1,264,904
Repairs and maintenance 4,322,598 1,426,171
Insurance 1,835,365 1,290,518
Light and water 4,310,571 1,204,264
Postage and telephone 1,059,276 768,670
Office and warehouse supplies 559,712 552,386
Rentals (see Note 30) 7,563,235 4,889,987
Miscellaneous 11,794,842 4,066,583

p 295,047,985 p 197,639,986

23. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
This account consists of:

2025 2024

Personnel expenses (see Note 28) P 18,880,802 p 25,418,177
Depreciation and amortization

(see Note 10 and 11) 12,145,343 11,227,395
Taxes and licenses 13,580,882 7,729,686
Allocable input VAT 8,502,904 6,318,642
Rentals (see Note 30) 5,517,699 7,237,020
Transportation and travel 2,869,863 5,651,223
Communication,light and water 2,953,423 5,432,778
Professional fees 5,276,867 4,743,452
Qutside services 6,000,574 5,030,131
Representation & entertainment 3,135,022 3,820,082
Repair and maintenance 613,727 3,140,591
Office supplies 2,332,972 3,102,655
Insurance 292,303 333,700
Training and seminars 104,253 325,034
Miscellaneous 7,810.832 9,069,714

P 90,017,466 p 98,580,278
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Expenses included under miscellaneous pertains to bank charges, SSS and other employee,
benefits, subscription dues and other general and administrative expenses that the individual
amount of which are immaterial and below 1 percent of the Group's total general and
administrative expenses.

24. OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)

This account consists of:

2025 2024
Unrealized gain (loss) on financial
assels at FVPL (see Nole 6) p P -
Interest income (see Nofe 5) 383,966 341,761
Realized gain (loss) on foreign
exchange - net 88,064 ( 240,555)
Unrealized gain onforeign
exchange - net
Interest expense (see Note 25) (75,008,540) (73,317,572)
Miscellaneous income (see Note 26) 4,230,179 2,993,580
Miscellaneous expense
(see Note 27) (12,067,632) (635,176)

P 82,373,962 P (70,857,962)

25. INTEREST EXPENSE

This account consists of:

2025 2024
Trust receipts payable (see Note 16) p 9,758,178 p 7,511,498
Notes and loans
payable (see Notes 14 and 15) 65,250,362 65,806,074

P 75,008,540 p 73,317,572
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26. MISCELLANEOUS INCOME

This account consists of:

2025 2024
Gain on sale of property and
equipment (see Note 10) P p 2,791,635
Scrap sales and other income 3,874,278

Interest on employees’ advances

For car/housing

loan (see Note 7) 355,901 201,945
Gain on lease

modification (see Note 30) -

p 4230179 p 2,993,580

27. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE

This account consists of penalties on deficiency tax assessments made by the BIR for taxable
years 2025 and 2024.

2025 2024
Basic tax p 10,572,603 p 561,416
Interest and surcharges 1,495,029 73,759
r 12,067,632 I 635,176
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28.

29.

PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Personnel expenses presented under cost of sales account is as follows (see Notes 20 and 21):

2025 2024
Salaries and wages P 38,652,805 P 35,620,358
Retirement benefit
costs (see Note 29) 895,058
Other employee benefits 9,645,081 13,607,059

P 49192946 P 49227417

Personnel expenses presented under selling and distributions and general and
administrative expenses account is as follows (see Notes 20 and 21):

2025 2024
Salaries and wages P 55,104,734 P 54,970,716
Retirement benefit
costs (see Note 29)
Other employee benefits 5103,725 4,431,215
P 60,208,458 P 59,401,931
RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has an unfunded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering
substantially all of its qualified regular employces. The retirement benefit is based on a
certain percentage of final monthly basic salary for every year of credited service of the
employees. The benefit obligation under the defined benefit retirement plan is determined
using the projected unit credit method. The benefits to be received by the employees under
the Group's defined benefit retirement plan meet the minimum mandated benefit under R.A.
No. 7641. Retirement benefit liability is based on the actuarial valuation report as at
December 31, 2024.

The components of retirement benefit costs included under "Personnel expenses" account (see
Note 28) in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income are as follows:

2024 2023
Current service cost P 18,014,450 P 15,910,530
Net interest cost 10,688,575 11,273,243

5 28,703,025 P 27,183,773

59



Retirement benefit costs is distributed as follows:

2024 2023
Cost of sales (see Note 28) P 12,140,696 | 11,453,291
Selling and distributionexpenses
(see Note 28) 9,901,446 9,455,202
General and administrative
expenses (see Note 28) - 6,660,883 6,275,280

P 28703025 P 27,183,773

Movements in retirement liability recognized in the consolidated statements of financial
position are as follows:

2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year P 244,236,531 P 221,621,228
Amount recognized in profit or loss 28,703,025 27,183,773
Amount recognized in OCI ( 7,178,240) 11,512,919
Benefit paid ( 7,802,123) ( 16,081,389)

P 257,959,193 P 244,236,531

The movements in the present value of the obligation are presented below:

2024 2023

Balance at beginning of year P 244,236,531 P 221,621,228
Current service cost 18,014,450 15,910,530
Interest cost 10,688,575 11,273,243
Remeasurement losses (gains)
recognized in OCI:

Experience adjustments ( 9,837,312) ( 3,849)

Changes in financial assumptions 2,659,072 11,606,768
Benefit paid ( 7,802,123) ( 16,081,389)

P 257,959,193 P 244,236,531

The principal assumptions used in determining retirement liability are as follows:

2024 2023
Discount rate 6.09% to 6.11% 6.07% to 6.09%
Future salary increase 1.00% to 5.00% 1.00% to 5.00%



Sensitivity analysis on net retirement liability as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as
follows:

2024 o 2023
Changes in Fffect on net i Effect on net
e retirement Changes in rate retirement

2 benefit liability _benefit liability

Discount rate +1.00% P 247,613,906 +1.00% P 234,469,786
S1L.00% 269,598,352 -1.00% 254,530,982

Future salary increase +1.00% 259,943 892 +1.00% 245,799,242
-1.00% 256,204,450 -1.00% 241,999,806

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the
impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions
occurring as at the end of the reporting period.

Details of other comprehensive income (loss) in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income are as follows:

2024 2023
Actuarial gain (loss) r 7,178,240 (P 11,512,919)
Deferred tax for the period ( 1,794,560) 2,878,230

P 5,383,680 (P 8,634,689 )

The cumulative remeasurement gains on net retirement benefit liability recognized in the
consolidated statements of equity are presented in Nole 33.

The maturity analysis of the undiscounted net retirement benefit liability is as follows:

Plan Year 2024 2023

Less than one year P 136,975,202 P 136,097,459
More than one year to five years 55,559,307 47,887,376
More than five years to ten years 104,450,241 98,853,389
More than ten years to fifteen years 138,379,330 127,860,124
More than fifteen years to twenty years 149,878,687 133,491,358
More than 20 years 144,410,720 120,480,802

P 729,653,487 P 664,670,508

The average duration of the retirement benefit liability at the end of the reporting period is
6.91 to 12.42 years in 2024 and6.91 to 13.06 years in 2023.
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30. LEASE
The Group as a Lessee
The Group has lease contracts for various buildings wherein its warchouses or distributions
centers, store branches, medical centers and office premises are located. Lease terms are
generally between 1 year up to 10 years, renewable upon mutual agreements of both parties.
The monthly fees are based on fixed rate subject to 2.5% to 6.0% escalation rate.

Movements in lease liabilities are presented below:

2025 2024

Balance at beginning of year P 148,080,009 P 148,080,009
Adjustment(see Note 17) 9,240,464 9,240,464
Additions 104,851,609 104,851,609
Lease modification ( 7,115,079) ( 1,047,149)
Accretion of interest (see Note 25) 12,212,289 12,212,289
Payments ( 80,820,140) ( 80,820,140)

186,449,152 192,517,082
Less current portion 66,815,432 66,983,492
Non-current portion P 119633720 P 125,533,590

31. INCOME TAXES

The President signed into law on March 26, 2021 the Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives for
Enterprises (CREATE) Act to attract more investments and maintain fiscal prudence and stability
in the Philippines. Republic Act (RA) 11534 or the CREATE Act introduces reforms to the corporate
income tax and incentives systems. It will take effect 15 days after its complete publication in the
Official Gazette or in a newspaper of general circulation.

Applying the provisions of the CREATE Acl, the Group would have been subjected to a lower regular
CIT rate of 25% effective July 1, 2020.

32. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted EPS based on net income are as follows:

2025 2024
Net profit P 66,026,607 p 43,633,018
Divided by weighted average
number of issued and
outstanding common shares 4,112,140,540 4,112,140,540
P 0.02 I? 0.01
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33.

Basic and diluted EPS based on total comprehensive income are as follows:

2025 o 2024
Total comprehensive income P 66,026,607 I 43,633,018
Divided by weighted average
number of issued and
outstanding common shares 4,112,140,540 4,112,140,540
P 0.02 P 0.01

Diluted EPS is equal to the basic EPS since the Group does not have potential dilutive shares.

OTHER COMPONENT OF EQUITY

This account pertains to cumulative comprehensive income (loss) recognized in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income. Comprehensive income (loss) consists of
net income or loss for the year, together with other gains and losses that are not recognized
in profit or loss for the year as required or permitted by PFRS Accounting Standards

collectively described as Other comprehensive income (loss).

The cumulative remeasurement gains on net retirement benefit liability recognized in the

consolidated statements of comprehensive income are as follows:

2025-2024
Cumulative
Remeasurement
Gain on Deferred Tax
Retirement Benefit
Benefit Liability (Expense) Net
Balance at beginning of year (P 33,134,900) P 7983923 (P  25,150,977)
Remeasurement gain 7,178,240 ( 1,794,560) 5,383,680
Balance at end of year (P 25,956,660) P 6,189,363 (P 19,767,297 )

CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The following table summarizes the changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

December 31,
2024 Cash Flows Adjustment March 31, 2025
Trust receipts payable P 498731364 P 46244738 P - P 544,979,122
Notes payable 2,511,683,889 ( 154,254,413) - 2,387,429,476
Loans payable 1,059,901,801 46,927,225 - 1,012,974,576
Lease liabilities 192,517,082 ( 6,067,930) 186,449,152
P 4,292.837,136 ( 161,004,810 ) P - P _4,131,832,326
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35.

December 31,

December 31, 2023 Cash Flows Adjustment 2024
Trust receipts payable P 407,707,584 P 91,026,780 P - P 498,734,364
Notes payable 2,606,511,000 64,827,111) - 2,541,683,889
Loans payable 876,658,333 183,243,468 - 1,059,901,801
Lease liabilities 148,080,009  ( 80,820,140) 125,257,213 192,517,082

P 4038956926 P 128622997 P 125257213 P 4,292,837,136

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is organized into operating segments based on the type of product or service. The
Group's reportable operating segments relate to manufacturing pharmaceutical products,
providing health and other care services and development and operation of quick service
restaurants.

All of the assets relating to the Group's operating segments are located in the Philippines.
Accordingly, reporting operating segments per geographical business operation is not
required.

Segment assets, liabilities and revenue and expenses are measured in accordance with PFRS
Accounting Standards. The presentation and classification of segment revenue and expenses
are consistent with the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. The presentation
and classification of segment assets and liabilities are consistent with the consolidated
statements of financial position.

Geographic Information

2025 2024
Revenues from external customers

Net profit P 1607388741 P 1,125,135,340

Export sales 22,523,971 43,675,300

P 1,629912,712 P 1,168,810,640

The Group has no revenue from transactions with a single external customer accounting for
10% or more of the consolidated revenues. All property, plant and equipment of the Group
are located in the Philippines.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
No events occurred between the statements of financial position date and the date on which

these financial statements were approved by the Company's Board of Directors that would
require adjustments to or disclosure in the financial statements.
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